CHRIST CHURCH:

OuUR HISTORY

and ministering to the Anglican resident community, at least since the late 17th century, there has only

een a permanent building since 1877. Previously, services were held in the British Embassy from 1831

until 1874, on Schenkenstrasse, and later demolished to make way for the new Burgtheater, thereafter in the new
purpose-built British Embassy in the Metternichgasse.

ﬁ Ithough there has been an Anglican priest in Vienna, acting as honorary chaplain to the British ambassador

From the middle of the 19th century, there was a considerable increase in size of the British community living in
Vienna, due especially to the establishment of ever more British businesses in Vienna as a result of closer economic
ties between Great Britain and Austria. Following the building of the new Embassy, it soon became apparent that
an Anglican church in Vienna was also required. The establishment of a permanent place of worship for the British
community was proposed to the Austrian Government in 1874 by the British Ambassador, Sir Andrew Buchanan,
but the plan was initially thwarted by a political obstacle.

In 1855, Pope Pius IX had concluded a Concordat with Austria, guaranteeing the prime recognition and privileges
of the Roman Catholic Church throughout the Austrian Empire (and thereby maintaining a certain influence
on Austrian politics). By 1870, however, following Italian unification, the Vatican had lost most of its temporal
power in Italy and was attempting to increase its authority outside its limited sphere. The Austrian Emperor,
Franz Joseph, objected to this and, in 1874, Confessional Laws were passed annulling the Concordat of 1855 and
regulating the relations of the Roman Catholic Church with the State.

One of these laws limited the right of public worship in the imperial capital to the Roman Catholic Church
and the two recognised Protestant Churches: the Augsburg (Lutheran) and the Helvetic (Calvinist) Confessions.
Furthermore, there was an absolute condition that the officiating priest must be an Austrian subject. This naturally
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left the British community in a difficult position, although the law did allow members of a non-ofhcially
recognised religion (such as the Church of England) the right to private worship. There is evidence that
the Emperor came to regret the effect these laws had on various foreign communities living in his capital,
and especially the British with whom he was keen to encourage good relations in the hope of wooing Great
Britain away from her German allegiance. The British Ambassador wrote to raise objections to the laws, in
particular to the condition on the nationality of the priest, and received the reply that this condition could
not be relaxed, but that the Austrian government would not oppose the building of an Anglican church
in Vienna by the British residents themselves, so long as it came under the protection and jurisdiction of
the British Embassy. In this way, the legal impasse could be bypassed, and negotiations began to acquire a
plot of land across the road from the newly completed Embassy building. In January 1876, the plot was
registered as the property of the Bishop of London and building commenced.

LAND AND ARCHITECT

The land occupied now by several embassies between Rennweg and Neulinggasse was originally owned by
the Chancellor, Clemens Prince Metternich. Following his death in 1859, his son, Richard, inherited the
whole area including the palace his father had built shortly before his downfall after the liberal revolution
of 1848 (which, since 1908, has been the Italian Embassy). Richard Metternich (the former name of
Jauresgasse, Richardgasse, commemorated him) suffered financially in the financial crisis of 1873 and sold
his extensive garden to a property developer, who saw the benefits (given the building boom in Vienna at
that time following the demolition of the city walls and construction of the Ringstrasse) of reselling the
land divided up into building plots. To add value to his plots, he encouraged the great powers to move out
of the overcrowded inner city and to create an Embassy district. The British and German governments were
the first to see the advantages of such an investment.

The architect, Viktor Rumpelmayer (1830-1885), was born in Pressburg (now Bratislava), the son of a
stonemason. He studied in Munich and Paris before moving to Vienna in the late 1860s, when he worked
in the studio of August Sicard von Sicardsburg and Eduard van der Niill, the architects of the Vienna Opera
(completed 1869). In 1872, he set himself up as an independent architect and designed a town palace for
Count Sigray on the corner of Reisnerstrasse and Jaurésgasse (now the Iranian Embassy). This was possibly
how he came to the attention of the British Ambassador and received the commission to design the new
British Embassy. The building, on the corner of the Jauresgasse and the Metternichgasse, was begun in
1873, and completed the following year. The French influence on Rumpelmayer’s style is very apparent,
particularly in the interiors.

To build the new church, Rumpelmayer was again chosen as the architect in 1876. In the meantime, the
British community had been actively raising money for the new church. More than £1000 was raised from
British businesses that had exhibited at the World Exhibition held in Vienna in 1873. A commemorative
board at the back of the church lists the main subscribers, including: Queen Victoria and the Prince of
Wales, several businessmen and private individuals, as well as a number of Austrians who employed British
subjects. The Ambassador and members of the embassy staff also contributed to the fund, as well as the
Minister (ambassador) of the United States, indicating the early involvement of American Episcopalians in
the existence of Christ Church.

In total contrast to his recognised preference for French-influenced Neo-Baroque, Rumpelmayer chose
a restrained, sober, more Protestant Gothic style for the church, possibly at the request of the British
community (reflecting the taste for Neo-Gothic church building in England at the time), or even for
reasons of cost (by reducing added expense for superfluous ornament). The decision to use brick rather than
stone was certainly a financial one (for most Viennese building at the time, the brick would be covered in
stucco to hide the cheapness of the material), but brick, for many, would conjure up an image of English
architecture. Nevertheless, the bricks were to be handmade, and the stone and woodwork was to be of
the highest quality available. The church was also provided with a modern coke-fired heating system, gas



lighting and, remarkably for the time, a lavatory. The character of Christ Church is defined by careful
detailing: the pews, the pulpit, the organ loft, and particularly the impressive hammer-beam roof—as well
as good lofty Gothic proportions. The nave is 18 metres long and 15 metres high to the apex of the roof.

Rumpelmayer later adapted his designs for Christ Church, adding a tower and stone cladding, for his Maria
Himmelfahrtskirche in Berndorf (Lower Austria), commissioned by the Krupp family and completed in
1883.

The church was opened by the Chaplain at that time, the Revd George Liddel Johnston, on Sunday, 8
July, 1877, in the presence of the British Ambassador, at which time the plaque at the back of the church
was unveiled, proclaiming that the church had been built “in Conformity with an order in Council of His
Imperial Majesty Francis Joseph I, permitting the erection of a place of worship in which Divine Service
shall be conducted according to The Rites of the Church of England” and stating that “the site is registered
as the property of The Right Honourable and Right Reverend The Lord Bishop of London [and] is under
the jurisdiction of Her Britannic Majesty’s Embassy.” At that service, however, no bishop was present, and
Christ Church was not officially consecrated until 11 June 1887, possibly because of hitherto outstanding
bills for the construction.

THE INTERIOR

The interior of the church building has numerous interesting features:

EAsT WINDOW

The windows of the church were
originally planned to be glazed with
plain glass and ornamental geometric
tracery. Over the years, these were
replaced by some modest coloured
stained glass panels commemorating
worthy members of the resident
community. The east window originally
showed Christ the Good Shepherd and
was installed to commemorate Queen
Victoria’s Diamond Jubilee in 1897. All
the windows were destroyed at the end
of the Second World War. The present
east window was designed by Frederick
W. Cole, who had served during the
war as a captain in the Royal Engineers,
designing camouflage, but was in fact
a member of the Royal Society of Arts
and the British Society of Master Glass
Painters, and chief designer for the
renowned Westminster firm of stained
glass-makers William Morris and Co.,
which made the window. The Royal
Engineers were responsible for repairing
the war-damaged church for use as the
Garrison Church (including removing
shrapnel from the pews and rewiring
the church). As the inscription at the
bottom of the central panel shows, the
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window is “Dedicated to the Glory of God by the British Troops in Austria 1945-1948.” It commemorates
the presence of British troops in Austria and the part played by the British 8th Army in the liberation of
the country.

MARBLE RELIEF

A marble relief in the centre of the south wall commemorates
Queen Victoria. It was erected after her death in 1901 and is an
early example of the work of the sculptor Anton Hanak (1875-
1934), whose more typical work can often be seen adorning the
facades of Vienna Council tenement blocks of the 1920s.

ORGAN

The organ was built by the Quebec-based organ builders,
Létourneau, to replace the original organ of 1897. It was installed
in 1987, after the congregation had raised 2 million Austrian
Schillings. It is known among organists as a particularly fine
instrument, especially for smaller works.

Tobay

Today, the congregation of Christ Church in Vienna, which
also serves Klagenfurt (Austria), Ljubljana (Slovenia), Zagreb
(Croatia), and Bratislava (Slovakia) is a multi-generational, multi-
ethnic congregation serving Anglicans from around the world.
The church’s present Chaplain is the Canon Patrick Curran.




